
 

 

 

K. Miles 
Chief Executive 
North Devon Council 

 S. Walford 
Chief Executive and 
Director of Growth 
Mid Devon District 
Council 

 

 
 

BUILDING CONTROL JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Building Control Joint Committee will be held as a Virtual - Online 
meeting on THURSDAY, 6TH AUGUST, 2020 at 9.00 am. 
 
 
Members of the 
Committee: 

Representing North Devon Council 
 
Councillors Topham and Yabsley 
 

 Representing Mid Devon District Council 
 
Councillors Barnell and Deed 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.   Virtual meeting procedure - briefing and etiquette   

 Chair to report. 
 

2.   Apologies for absence   
 

3.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 
2020 (attached)  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

4.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered as a 
matter of urgency.   
 

5.   Declarations of Interest   

 (Please complete the enclosed form or telephone the Corporate and Community 
Services Unit to prepare a form for your signature before the meeting. Interests 
must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors must leave the room 
if necessary). 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

 

6.   To agree agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information)   
 

PART 'A' 

7.   Pooled budget and trading account as at 30 June 2020  (Pages 9 - 10) 

 Report by North Devon Council Accountancy Services Manager (attached). 
 

8.   Building Control Business Update.  (Pages 11 - 14) 

 Report by Building Control Manager (attached). 
 

9.   Key Performance Indicators.  (Pages 15 - 18) 

 Report by the Building Control Manager (attached). 
 

10.   Impact of Building Safety Bill  (Pages 19 - 24) 

 Report by Building Control Manager (attached). 
 

PART 'B' (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION). 

Nil. 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 

 
North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP  
 

 



 

Building Control Joint Committee - 23 January 2020 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Building Control Joint Committee held at Woodlands 
Enterprise Centre, Pathfields Business Park, South Molton on Thursday, 23rd 
January, 2020 at 9.00 am 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor  

 
 Councillors Barnell, Topham and Yabsley 

 
 Officers: 

 
Building Control Manager, North Devon Council and the Head of 
Planning, Economy, Regeneration, Mid Devon District Council and 
Accountancy Services Manager, North Devon Council. 
 

  
  

23.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Deed, Solicitor and Data 
Protection Officer, North Devon Council, Group Manager for Financial Services, Mid 
Devon District Council and the Accountant, Mid Devon District Council. 
 

24.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 31ST OCTOBER 2019 (ATTACHED) 
 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 31st October 2019 (circulated 
previously) be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

25.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest announced. 
 

26.   POOLED BUDGET AND TRADING ACCOUNT FOR QUARTER 3 
AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2019. REPORT BY NORTH DEVON 
COUNCIL ACCOUNTANCY SERVICES MANAGER (ATTACHED). 
 

The Joint Committee received an update by the Accountancy Services Manager in 
relation to the Pooled Budget and Building Control Trading Account for quarter three 
as at 31st December 2019 (circulated previously). 
 
The Accountancy Services Manager highlighted the following: 
 

 Column one detailed the nine month expenditure for both Councils. 

 Column two detailed the nine month actuals for both Councils. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 23 January 2020 

 
 

 
2 

 

 Column three detailed the income split for quarter three for both Councils with 
a £47k contribution to North Devon Council. 

 Column four detailed the outturn for the year, which reported a surplus of 
£63k for North Devon Council at year end. 

 
He added that at the end of quarter two the Mid Devon District Council figures were 
down between September and October 2019. However, the revised figures for 
quarter three indicated an upturn to the previous level. 
 
The Building Control Manager advised that there had been a trading loss of £14K in 
September 2019 and whilst at the time it appeared to indicate a potentially 
problematic winter. The figures had since improved and the service was now in a 
better position than it was at quarter two.  
 

27.   POOLED BUDGET AND TRADING ACCOUNT ESTIMATED FULL 
YEAR EFFECT. REPORT BY THE ACCOUNTANCY SERVICES 
MANAGER (ATTACHED). 
 

The Joint Committee received an update by the Accountancy Services Manager in 
relation to the Pooled Budget and Building Control Trading Account estimated full 
year effect (circulated previously). 
 
The Chairman questioned whether there were any risks associated with the forecast 
of £63k profit for the partnership. 
 
The Accountancy Services Manager, North Devon Council explained that if income 
was to drop off again this would adversely affect the estimated outturn position. He 
added that the Head of Resources from North Devon Council had met with the 
Group Manager for Financial Services from Mid Devon District Council and it was 
agreed that it might be prudent to put the surplus into the reserves at year end, and 
didn’t plan to include any accruals at the current time. He further added that if the 
service took the accrual at year end it could set a precedent and the same would 
then need to be applied for subsequent years, which would significantly impact upon 
the workload of the Building Control Team and a small one off windfall would be a 
better option. 
 
In response to a question regarding what could be done with the surplus, he 
explained that it could be placed into the reserves if required. This could be 
addressed as part of the Council’s outturn report and be placed into an earmarked 
reserve for Building Control. 
 
In response to a further question regarding whether the joint Committee would need 
to jointly agree a figure to be placed into the earmarked reserves. The Accountancy 
Services Manager, North Devon Council confirmed that would be the appropriate 
course of action, subject to the outturn position and any other pressures that were 
present at the time. 
 
The Building Control Manager advised that the trading partnership was in credit as 
indicated by the financial report. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 23 January 2020 

 
 

 
3 

 

 
RESOLVED, that if the financial projections for the Building Control Partnership 
continued, 50% of the surplus for the Partnership be placed into an earmarked 
reserve for the following year, subject to the outturn position. 
 

28.   BUILDING CONTROL BUSINESS UPDATE. REPORT BY 
BUILDING CONTROL MANAGER (ATTACHED). 
 

The Joint Committee received an update by the Building Control Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding the Building Control Business Update. 
 
The Building Control Manager highlighted the following: 
 

 Seven Surveyors sat the Local Authority Building Control (LABC) validation of 
fire safety expertise examination on 19th November 2019 and of those seven 
surveyors five passed. The successful candidates would now be issued with 
an individual licence by the LABC, which would enable compliance with the 
Council’s quality assurance system and proposed legislation regardless of the 
height or complexity of developments. 

 The parish allocation to Surveyors had been revised, which introduced an 
area of responsibility for the graduate trainee and balanced the workload 
between the surveyors. 

 To date there was still only four Approved Inspectors that had failed to gain 
reinsurance and it appeared unlikely that there would be any further 
casualties at the current time. 

 There were 15 reversion applications for projects left without Building Control 
as a result of the collapse of AEDIS. The remainder of the projects either had 
not started or were found to be exempt works and as a result the Initial 
Notices had been withdrawn. 

 A number of the projects had now been successfully completed but there 
were also a number with significant contraventions including the conversion of 
a listed hotel into 12 flats in Ilfracombe. 

 The recent regulation changes resulting from the Grenfell Tower fire included 
a restriction on the combustibility of items attached to façade of a building 
including products intended to reduce heat gain. A High Court Ruling found 
that the regulation was not valid due to a failure to consult adequately prior to 
implementation and as a result the regulation had been withdrawn. 

 With regards to the Future Homes Standard consultation and changes to 
Requirement L – Conservation of fuel and power and Requirement F -  
Ventilation. The Building Control Manager advised that he had liaised with 
both North and Mid Devon Planners and was currently co-ordinating 
responses to that. He added that Planners believe 100% carbon emissions in 
production. However, Building Control were of the opinion that 100% carbon 
emissions should be applied at a national level, which would ensure that a 
type could be accepted everywhere. 

 The Council had a display stand at the Direct Contact Exhibitions Continued 
Professional Development (CPD) event at the Barnstaple Hotel on 
Wednesday 5th February 2020. The Council was organising a further CPD 
event in partnership with ARC Building Solutions for their clients and the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 23 January 2020 

 
 

 
4 

 

provisional date for this event was Thursday 20th February 2020 and was due 
to be held at the Barnstaple Museum. 

 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration, Mid Devon District Council 
advised that each Council would have different climate emergency response plans 
and their views on carbon emissions would form part of those plans. She added that 
planning authorities felt that it was a valuable addition to the toolkit to assist Councils 
in their efforts to address the climate emergency. 
 
In response to a question regarding whether the requirement to pass the Local 
Authority Building Control (LABC) validation of fire safety expertise examination 
would be mandatory, the Building Control Manager advised that it was likely that the 
qualification would become a mandatory requirement in terms of the low level of 
licences to practice on high rise buildings.  
 
He added that the government were looking to reduce the height of high rise 
buildings from 18 metres down to 15 metres. However, this would not be applied 
retrospectively and only applicable to new buildings.  
 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration, Mid Devon District Council 
advised that the government had requested he statistics for the number of buildings 
that currently stood over 18 metres. 
 
The Joint Committee wished to pass on their congratulations to the five surveyors 
that had passed the LABC validation of fire safety expertise examination.  
 

29.   KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS. REPORT BY THE BUILDING 
CONTROL MANAGER (ATTACHED). 
 

The Joint Committee received an update by the Building Control Manager (circulated 
previously) regarding the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).  
 
The Building Control Manager highlighted the following: 
 

 The service had met the targets for two major KPIs: 
 

 Building Regulation Full Plan applications determined in two months – 
100%. 

 Building Regulation Applications examined within three weeks – 98%. 

 All measures for plan check response times were met this quarter with an 
average first response time of eight days. 

 The market share for the number of applications was 72%, which was down 
on the target of 75%. He added that he had looked into the figures and it 
would appear that the service had lost out to JHAI on some of the smaller jobs 
within the local area. In terms of the medium market, the Council was still very 
strong with the market share quite evenly spread and a significant share of 
the larger regional developments. He added that having looked into the 
figures he wasn’t alarmed by the figure and advised that it were to become a 
long term trend the service could look to review the target figure. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 
Building Control Joint Committee - 23 January 2020 

 
 

 
5 

 

 The market share for new housing completions was 33% against a target of 
40%. He explained that the figure was slightly below target due to the number 
of large sites under development within the Barnstaple area. 

 

30.   GOVERNMENT PROPOSALS RESULTING FROM THE HACKITT 
ENQUIRY - BUILDING CONTROL MANAGER TO REPORT. 
 

The Building Control Manager advised that this item had already been covered as 
part of the update report in relation to the discussions surrounding the government 
proposal to reduce the height of high rise buildings from 18 metres down to 15 
metres.  
 
He added that there would be various briefings in July or August of 2020 as soon as 
any changes were announced. 
 

31.   DATES AND LOCATIONS OF FUTURE MEETINGS. TO AGREE 
DATES AND LOCATIONS OF FUTURE MEETINGS OF THE 
COMMITTEE FOR 2020/21. 
 

The Joint Committee discussed the dates and locations of future meetings for 
2019/20.  
 
RESOLVED, that the Clerk to the Committee circulate an email with potential dates 
for the forthcoming year 2020/21. 
 
 
Chairman 
The meeting ended at 10.02 am 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



NDC MDC NDC MDC Total NDC MDC Chargeable
Non 

Chargeable
Chargeable Non Chargeable NDC MDC NDC MDC Total NDC MDC Chargeable

Non 

Chargeable
Chargeable Non Chargeable

60% 40% 75% 25% 75% 25% 60.3% 39.7% 75% 25% 75% 25%

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Employees 375,349 154,950 354,004 148,006 502,010 300,343 201,666 225,258 75,086 151,250 50,417 91,410 38,740 90,754 35,525 126,280 76,143 50,136 57,108 19,036 37,602 12,534 

Transport 25,450 14,940 23,563 14,075 37,637 22,518 15,120 16,888 5,629 11,340 3,780 6,363 3,598 5,676 1,754 7,431 4,480 2,950 3,360 1,120 2,213 738 

Supplies and Services 28,150 12,990 17,596 8,979 26,574 15,899 10,675 11,924 3,975 8,007 2,669 4,813 2,643 2,782 1,808 4,590 2,767 1,822 2,076 692 1,367 456 

Third Party Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Central & Support Service charges 74,810 45,180 74,789 45,180 119,969 71,775 48,194 53,831 17,944 36,145 12,048 19,073 11,150 19,111 858 19,969 12,040 7,928 9,030 3,010 5,946 1,982 

Total Expenditure 503,759 228,060 469,951 216,239 686,190 410,535 275,655 307,902 102,634 206,741 68,914 121,658 56,130 118,324 39,945 158,268 95,431 62,837 71,574 23,858 47,127 15,709

Income

Building Regulation Charges -356,200 -240,000 -392,502 -263,547 -656,049 -392,502 -263,547 -392,502 -263,547 -89,425 -60,000 -71,681 -47,198 -118,879 -71,681 -47,198 -71,681 -47,198 

Misc Income/S106 Receipts 0 0 -1,500 -1,500 0 -1,500 0 -1,500 

Job Ret Scheme 0 -10,438 0 -10,438 -6,294 -4,144 -4,721 -1,574 -3,108 -1,036 

Payments between authorities -69,920 58,840 0 0 0 -51,806 -1,036 

Total Income -426,120 -181,160 -392,502 -263,547 -656,049 -392,502 -263,547 -392,502 0 -263,547 0 -89,425 -60,000 -82,119 -48,698 -130,817 -77,975 -52,842 -76,402 -1,574 

(Surplus)/Deficit for Year 77,449 -47,307 30,141 18,033 12,108 -84,601 102,634 -56,805 68,914 32,233 -3,870 36,205 -8,753 27,451 17,456 9,995 -4,828 22,284 -4,679 14,673

% income split 60% 40% 30,141 18,033 12,108 60% 40% 27,451 17,456 9,995

Appropriation Profit/Loss
Cash require to pay over from MDC to NDC 59,416 18,748

Debtor to be raised by NDC to MDC -59,416 -18,748 
-0 -0 

NDC MDC
TOTAL

NDC MDC Chargeable
Non 

Chargeable
Chargeable

Non 

Chargeable
60% 40% 75% 25% 75% 25%

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Expenditure
Employees 365,640 154,960 520,600 312,360 208,240 234,270 78,090 156,180 52,060 
Transport 25,450 14,390 39,840 23,904 15,936 17,928 5,976 11,952 3,984 
Supplies and Services 19,250 10,570 29,820 17,892 11,928 13,419 4,473 8,946 2,982 
Third Party Payments -54,473 54,473 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Central & Support Service charges 76,290 44,600 120,890 72,534 48,356 54,401 18,134 36,267 12,089 

Total Expenditure 432,157 278,993 711,150 426,690 284,460 320,018 106,673 213,345 71,115 

Income
Building Regulation Charges -304,045 -204,000 -508,045 -304,045 -204,000 -304,045 -204,000 
Misc Income/S106 Receipts
Job Ret Scheme -13,668 0 -13,668 -8,201 -5,467 -8,201 -5,467 

Payments between authorities

Total Income -317,713 -204,000 -521,713 -312,246 -209,467 -312,246 0 -209,467 0

0

(Surplus)/Deficit for Year 114,444 74,993 189,437 114,444 74,993 7,772 106,673 3,878 71,115 
% income split 60% 40% 189,437

Appropriation Profit/Loss
Cash require to pay over from MDC to NDC

0
Debtor to be raised by NDC to MDC

0
0

2020/21  (forecast) MDC 2020/212020/21  (forecast)

4

NDC 2019/20

 Building Control Partnership Trading Account 

MDC 2020/21

1 2 5

NDC 2019/20 MDC 2019/20

2019/20

 BUDGET  ACTUAL

1 2 3 3

Apr to Jun 2020( Actual ) Apr to Jun 2020( Actual )

FORECAST 2020/21 BASED ON 15% drop from budgeted fee income

4 5

NDC 2020/21

2020/21 QUARTER 1

SPLIT Apr to Jun 2020( Budget)

1 24 5

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NOTE TO: JOINT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

DATE: 06/08/2020 

TOPIC: BUILDING CONTROL BUSINESS UPDATE 

REPORT BY: MIKE TUCKER (BUILDING CONTROL MANAGER) 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1   The purpose of this report is to update members regarding the progress of the 
partnership and contains no recommendations. 

 

2 REPORT 

2.1      Staff 

2.1.1 Fortunately our Surveyors are all equipped with laptops and mobile phones and 
iPads for mobile working and our business continuity plan ensured that an additional 
laptop was available for the Technical Support Team. Hence, the immediate 
transition to home working was relatively simple. 

2.1.2 We have been operating with one Technical Support Officer in the office at all times 
to ensure front line telephone response and distribution of technical calls to the 
Surveyors mobile phones. A second Technical Support Officer worked primarily from 
home and the third was furloughed due to child care needs. 

2.1.3 On-site inspections were suspended for three weeks with remote inspections being 
carried out using video conferencing combined with telephone interviews supported 
by photographs. The use of video conferencing for inspection has been particularly 
applauded by a number of service users. 

2.1.4 All enquiries and request for inspection have been responded to throughout the 
lockdown ensuring support to our customers 

2.1.5 Two Surveyors were furloughed and a further two have been shielding.  

2.1.6 The Surveyors shielding have been working from home carrying out plan checks and 
remote inspections of which there were 100 in June. This has freed up the remaining 
Surveyors to concentrate on site inspection in order to cover larger areas resulting 
from the furlough of colleagues and shielding. 

2.1.7 Contact has been maintained with all staff using Skype for business extensively and 
we have had team meetings on a weekly basis using Zoom with 1:1 contact using 
Skype for business. 

2.1.8 Distribution of DSE assessment forms and submission of photos of homeworking set 
ups identified two Surveyors with unsuitable work stations and they have returned to 
work in the office. Equipment needed to make other work stations satisfactory has 
been collected from the office (Chairs, keyboards, mice screens etc. 

2.1.9 A Perspex screen has now been erected in Woodlands to provide greater occupancy 
enabling the currently furloughed member of the Tech support team to return to the 
office and still provide adequate space for the two Surveyors. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



2.2 Devonshire Homes 

2.2.1 Despite our best efforts Devonshire Homes are considering switching back to NHBC 
for Building Control and Warranty provision. I have spoken to their Technical Director 
who is our main contact and LABC warranty have negotiated at length. 

2.2.2 They are entirely happy with the service provide by LABC Building Control which is 
led by NMD Building Control as their partner authority.  

2.2.3 The issue relates to Section 38 Road Bonds which are a service provided by LABC 
Warranty. Devonshire are unhappy with the conditions that are now being attached to 
the insurance policies and the cost which can be considerable and prefer the offering 
made by NHBC.  

2.2.4 NHBC are an insurance company in their own right and therefore not tied to a third 
party provider and are able to act as guarantor under Section 38 of the Highways Act 
1980 based on their insurance reserves. This enables them to limit the cost of 
providing this service to the developer on the condition that they purchase Warranty 
and Building Control Services. 

2.2.5 This is extremely unfortunate as they are one of our one of our largest customers and 
it is an issue which is beyond our control. This an example of the limitations of our 
ability to compete for the business of larger house builders.  

2.2.6 In 2019/20 we received £15,591 in fees from Devonshire Homes. £9,325 of this was 
from partnership work outside our geographic area. 

 

2.3   Marketing 

2.3.1 A number of nominations were made for the LABC Building Excellence Awards 2020 
resulting in the following finalists. 

Best LABC Partnership  

Devonshire Homes  

 

Best Construction Professional 

Andy Smith – Devonshire Homes 

Jamie Wright – Complete Building Regs Service Ltd 

Darren Johnson – Chichester Homes 

 

Best Housing Development 

Devonshire Homes – Hayford Way Landkey 

Chichester Homes – Osbourne Gardens 

 

Best Social Housing Development 

Devonshire Homes – Hayford Way Landkey 

Mid Devon District Council – Turner Rise Mid Devon Council 

 

Best Small Housing Development 

Wildfire Property Development / RGP Architects – Sharp Rock Woolacombe 

 

Best Individual New Dwelling  

AP Build Devon Ltd. / Peregrine Mears Architects – The Ark Ashford 

Build Devon Ltd. / Gale and Snowdon Architects - Sherwood  

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



 

Best Change of Use 

Acorus Ltd. / Kevin Pickard – Langridge Farm Barn Atherington 

Kevin Capner – School House Bickington 

 

Best Alteration or Extension 

Ashbourne Construction Solutions / Narracott Architects – Newton St Cyres 

Van Ellen & Sheryn - Rookery Lodge Creedy Park Crediton 

 

Best Local Builder / Craftsmen 

Ashbourne Construction Solutions – Newton St Cyres 

 

Best Commercial Building 

Lodgico / Honka UK Ltd. – March End Farm 

 

Best Public Service Building 

NHS / Pearce Construction / David Wilson Partnership - Wellbeing Centre North 
Devon Hospital 

North Devon Council – Barnstaple Museum 

 

2.3.2 The LABC awards night was cancelled in May but judging is now taking place and 
results will be announced in August/September with a coordinated marketing and 
social media campaign by LABC. We will present any awards received by our 
nominees in person with a photo opportunity for press releases. 

2.3.3 Unfortunately we were forced to cancel our last CPD event for clients which was in 
partnership with ARC Building Solutions regarding fire protection products due to 
COVID19 which was to be hosted in the new museum extension in Barnstaple. 

 

2.4   MDDC Local Plan Policy DM1 

2.4.1 At the time of writing the Mid Devon Local Plan is due to go to Committee on 29th 
July 2020. Assuming it is approved there is a 6 week period for legal challenge and 
then it will become planning policy impacting planning applications from 9th 
September 2020. 

2.4.2 This impacts Building Control because it will introduce policy DM1 on High Quality 
Design. Part of this will introduce the requirement on sites of 10 dwellings or more for 
the provision of 20% of the dwellings to comply with Requirement M4(2): Accessible 
and adaptable dwellings. 

2.4.3 It is the applicants responsibility to notify the BCB of the existence of the planning 
condition requiring this. However, as we are part of MDDC it will not look good if one 
slips through the net because we did not check. Planning applications for MDDC can 
be quickly referenced through the properties tab on Uniform. We will therefore verify 
as part of the registration process. 

2.4.4 The requirements of M4(2) are extensive and include the following, 

 All dwellings require a level external landing at least 1200mm 
square.  This landing has to be covered.  This prevents the building of 
a dwelling directly onto a pavement or highway. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



 There is no option for a stepped approach to a dwelling so the 
condition cannot be implemented on sloping sites, unless you like long 
snaking ramps. 

 If a parking space is provided it has to be able to be widened to 3.3m 

 Level access is required to all external doors of a dwelling, including 
into the garden etc. 

 A minimum stair width of 850mm is required so that a stair lift can be 
fitted. 

 A dwelling has to have a living room on the entrance storey, 
precluding ‘upside down’ layouts 

 Minimum sizes are given around kitchen appliances. 

 A living room must have a window below 850mm from internal floor 
level. 

 Three bedroom houses require a shower room on ground floor. 

 All dwellings must have a bath. 

 The standard requires minimum circulation spaces around beds and 
furniture in bedrooms. 

 All flats require a lift. 

2.4.5 It is therefore clear that a design assessment for compliance with the Building 
Regulations is required prior to planning approval. If this is not done there is a high 
risk that the applicant will receive a worthless planning permission that will later need 
to be amended due to the Building Regulation requirements impacting on aspects 
such as levels, street scene and the size and layout of dwellings. 

2.4.6 We are in communication with the planning Department to develop protocols to 
mitigate these risks. 

2.4.7 Building Controls preferred option is for the Planning Department to advise the 
applicant to contact their preferred Building Control service provider for an 
assessment prior to approval and make it clear that NMD are available and can 
provide this service. 

2.4.8 NMD would then charge a consultation fee that could be offset against the Building 
Regulation fee if we subsequently receive the application. 

2.4.9 This approach would enable us to maximise income whilst limiting time spent on 
planning applications for which we will potentially not receive a fee and ensure early 
contact with applicants to help secure the Building Control work. 

2.4.10 Alternatively, it would be necessary for either Planning Officers or Building Control to 
check compliance as part of the Planning application assessment. This exposes the 
Local Authority to risk as it is possible that the BCB appointed by the applicant could 
contradict the advice given at the planning stage. The assessment would also need 
to be funded from the planning application fee with a potential cross charge between 
Planning and Building Control.  

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



 

 

NMD BUILDING CONTROL 

REPORT TO: JOINT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

DATE: 06/08/2020 

TOPIC: KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

REPORT BY: MIKE TUCKER (BUILDING CONTROL MANAGER) 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1  The purpose of this report is to update members regarding the progress of the partnership 
and contains no recommendations. 

 

2 REPORT 

2.1    Key performance indicators 

 

KPI 
Year 2019/20 2020/21 

Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 

Building Regulation Full Plan 
applications determined in 2 
months 

95% 99% 96% 100% 100% 98% 

Building Regulation Applications 
examined within 3 weeks 

95% 84% 90% 98% 99% 99% 

Average time to first response 
(Days) 

10 12 10 8 7 5 

Market Share - Number of 
applications % 

75% 74% 78% 72% 75% 81% 

Market Share - New Housing 
Completions % 

40% 32% 33% 33% 52% 32% 

Financial Position Breakeven 82,281 110,722 147,935 141,406 9,506 

Number of applications received N/A 346 348 305 306 237 

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



 

2.2      Number of applications received  

 

2.2.1   As a result of the pandemic applications dropped dramatically but have slowly recovered 
increasing over the 3 months of the first quarter. As a result in June the number of 
applications was approaching approximately 90% of what would normally be expected. 

 

 

2.3 Fee Income 

 

 

2.3.1   Income is below that budgeted but the trading account is just above the breakeven point. 
However, this has only been achieved by taking advantage of the government job 
retention scheme and furloughing three of our staff which has provided a saving of 
£10,438.00 as of the end of June 2020. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



2.3.2    However, income is still lower than the number of applications would suggest because the 
domestic market has emerged relatively strongly but commercial, build dwellings and 
projects over £100K are still depressed resulting in fewer larger fees. 

2.3.3  This work profile is typical of that which pre-empts a recession in the construction industry. 

 

2.1      Plan check response times 

2.1.1   With the reduced number of applications the average response time has been reduced to 
5 days with one application recorded as just outside the 21 day target. 

2.1.2    Decisions within the target period was 100% in the last quarter of 2019/20 and was still on 
target at 98% in quarter 3. The couple of jobs that were just over the target period was 
due to Surveyors being on furlough and covering colleagues missing these jobs on the 
work queue. 

 

2.2     Market share  

2.2.1   Overall market share has increased to 81% based on the number of applications. This is 
partly due to the high proportion of domestic applications but is also due to Approved 
Inspectors failing to provide any sort of response to customer enquiries due to extensive 
use of furlough during the pandemic. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NOTE TO: JOINT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

DATE: 06/08/2020 

TOPIC: IMPACT OF BUILDING SAFETY BILL 

REPORT BY: MIKE TUCKER (BUILDING CONTROL MANAGER) 

 

1       INTRODUCTION 

1.1      The purpose of this report is to outline the proposed changes to legislation brought 
forward by the Building Safety Bill published on 20 July 2020 and the measures to be 
taken by NMD Building Control in response. 

 

2      CONTENT OF THE BILL 

2.1      What is the Building Safety Bill 

2.1.1 The Building Safety Bill is the framework and enabling legislation for putting in place 
new and enhanced regulatory regimes for building safety and construction products, 
and ensure residents have a stronger voice. It implements the recommendations of 
the Building Safety programme which was set up to advise the government on the 
measures needed to ensure building safety following the Grenfell Tower Fire on 14 
June 2017 and in particular the recommendations of the Hackitt Review which was 
followed by a consultation - Building a safer future: proposals for reform of the 
building safety regulatory system. 

2.1.2 This is in conjunction with the Fire Safety Bill that requires building owners and 
managers of multi occupied residential premises of any height to fully consider and 
mitigate the risks of any external wall systems and fire doors. 

2.2      The Building Safety Regulator 

2.1.3 Establishment of a new Building Safety Regulator (BSR). The Health and Safety 
Executive has already been appointed as the BSR with a Chief Inspector of Buildings 

2.1.4 The BSR will oversee the safety and performance of all buildings, and actively 
enforce a more stringent regulatory regime for buildings in scope during their design, 
construction and occupation.  

2.1.5 The more stringent regime will apply to all multi-occupied residential buildings of 18 
metres or more in height, or more than six storeys (whichever is reached first), and 
may be extended further in the future.  

2.1.6 The regulator will be responsible for major regulatory decisions, including whether to 
allow the project to proceed past defined gateways. These include allowing 
construction to commence and agreeing that the Building Safety Manager has 
provided an appropriate safety case demonstrating safe occupation.  

2.1.7 The Regulator will work with other experts and regulators and will have additional 
duties such as maintaining a register of buildings, dealing with resident complaints, 
providing advice on risks for buildings and establishing housing centres of 
excellence.   

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



2.1.8 The Regulator will oversee a new competence regime for people working on 
buildings. They have powers covering all buildings, which will include advising on 
changes to the Building Regulations and Approved Documents (and put in a structure 
to replace the current Building Regulations Advisory Body), and oversee and report 
on the performance of Building Control Bodies. 

2.3      System duty holders and gateways 

2.3.1 A system of duty holders will be established.  

2.3.2 During design and construction specific duty holders (such as the client, designer and 
contractors) will be responsible for showing compliance with the regulatory regime 
through three gateways:  

Gateway 1 – The duty holders must be defined before Planning Permission can be 
granted 

Gateway 2 – The BSR takes on the role of Building Control body and work cannot 
commence until they are satisfied 

Gateway 3 – Occupation will not be able to take place until the BSR has issued a 
Building Registration Certificate and the Accountable person and Building Safety 
Manager have been identified. 

2.3.3 Submitting a safety case to the Regulator will be a mandatory requirement and the 
Building Safety Manager will be required to keep it up to date. The safety case will be 
based on the risk assessment principle applied as part of the current Fire Safety 
Order responsibilities. The case will be reviewed periodically by the Regulator, and it 
will have the power to require changes to mitigations in place. 

2.3.4 Across the life cycle of the building there will be requirements on duty holders, such 
as to maintain the golden thread of building information and mandatory occurrence 
reporting (of structural safety or fire safety related events).  

2.3.5 Refurbishment works that are subject to building regulations will come under a similar 
process involving sign off from the Building Safety Regulator.  

2.3.6 Existing buildings in scope will be required to obtain a Building Registration 
Certificate and have the same system of Accountable Person and Building Safety 
Manager. 

2.4   Resident Engagement Strategy 

2.4.1 The Building Safety Manager is required to produce and implement a Resident 
Engagement Strategy.  

2.4.2 A complaints process will be required in the Engagement Strategy and complaints 
can be escalated to the Building Safety Regulator.  

2.4.3 There will be a statutory duty for residents to cooperate with the Building Safety 
Manager in their work, and options for enforcement if needed. 

2.5   Competence  

2.5.1 The BSR is responsible for forming a Committee concerned with the competency of 
persons working in the built environment on industry competence. 

2.5.2 The BSR will establish a register of approved Building Inspectors and the register 
may stipulate different classes of inspector approved for different types of work. 

2.5.3 The Building Safety Regulator will be responsible for oversight of the competence 
and performance of building control but the regulator or a designated body will 
develop the details. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 10



2.5.4 Where a registered Building Inspector is considered to be guilty of professional 
misconduct, the regulator may cancel the registration and/or impose a financial 
penalty. 

2.6   Enforcement  

2.6.1 The Building Act 1984 is amended to make the Building Safety Regulator responsible 
for enforcement for residential buildings over 6 storeys. Where the regulations are 
breached the BSR will issue a compliance notice. Non-compliance is a criminal 
offence and can result in a stop notice and/or prosecution. 

2.6.2 If the notices also fail to achieve compliance, the Building Safety Regulator will have 
the power to take enforcement action against the duty-holders.  

2.6.3 The Building Safety Regulator will have a range of tools available, including reviewing 
the Building Registration Certificate, which could ultimately lead to revocation and, 
where appropriate, the ability to prosecute duty-holders and/or the Accountable 
Person as appropriate, potentially leading to an unlimited fine the level of which 
would depend on the extent that structural and fire safety has been compromised. 

2.6.4 Higher penalties are intended to ensure that duty-holder compliance with the legal 
requirements is far more straightforward and cost effective than non-compliance. 

2.7   New Homes Ombudsman Scheme 

2.7.1 Makes provision for a new homes ombudsman for the receipt and investigation of 
complaints from owners of new build homes. 

 

3       IMPACT ON PARTNERSHIP 

3.1   Buildings in scope 

3.1.1 The original recommendations from the Hackitt review recommended that buildings 
over 30m should be considered but this is now reduced to 18 m or more than 6 
storeys. There is therefore the possibility of buildings being directly impacted by the 
control mechanisms implemented by the Bill and the jurisdiction of the BSR. 

3.2  Competence and Registration 

3.2.1 The BSR is responsible for forming a Committee concerned with the competency of 
persons working in the built environment on industry competence. 

3.2.2 In anticipation of the changes that are now being introduced by legislation LABC 
introduced a competency framework for Local Authority. NMD Building Control have 
validated five of our staff at Level 6 for fire safety enabling us to deal with all building 
types. A further officer is validated to Level 5 enabling them to work independently on 
commercial developments and one is currently undertaking a degree and 
apprenticeship. However, one senior officer and two surveyors who will need to 
obtain validation of their competencies in the near future as well as our Technical 
Support Officers who will need to be validated to Level 3.  

3.2.3 An on-going training commitment will be required to achieve the registration of all 
staff and maintenance of skills. 

3.2.4 The requirement for registration will increase competition within the jobs market for 
registered building inspectors making loss of staff a significant possibility and creating 
a barrier to entry to the profession making recruitment even more difficult. 

3.2.5 Registration and competency validation is time limited requiring re-evaluation every 
three years imposing risk of failure and the need for continued refreshing of learning 
to maintain effectiveness. There is already a shortage of qualified and experienced 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



personnel and this will make recruitment even more difficult and increase the risk of 
Surveyors leaving as they either find that they are an increasingly valuable asset or 
that they are unprepared to undertake assessments to gain and maintain registration. 

3.2.6 Increased legal risk to the Local Authorities and the individuals working within 
Building Control. There are penalties that can be levied against an individual for 
professional misconduct significantly changing the level of responsibility imposed on 
officers and particularly those in positions of managerial responsibility. 

3.3   Oversight by Building Safety Regulator 

3.3.1 Building Control providers will be required to follow set procedures and meet defined 
standards. Compliance will be monitored by the BSR who is charged with oversight 
of Building Control. Hence, failure to maintain standards and fulfil competency criteria 
will have real consequences with the potential for sanctions against the Local 
Authority and individuals. 

3.4   Potential impact on costs 

3.4.1 It is too early to say the full extent to which these changes will impact the cost of 
service delivery or the potential impact on income. 

3.4.2 However, it is there will be a shift in the balance between trading activity and 
enforcement by Local Authorities. This is both due to an increased expectancy with 
regard to prosecution combined with the oversight of the BSR and an increase in the 
number of Initial Notices reverted to the Local Authority by Approved Inspectors 
which is a trend that we are already seeing. 

 

4      PROPOSED ACTIONS 

4.1   Enforcement  

4.1.1 Within the LABC framework enforcement is a defined competency at Level 6. Hence 
there is a need to ensure that at least one Surveyor is validated in this regard. 

4.1.2 Prosecutions via the Courts are historically low in Building Control and this is 
reflected in the partnership. NDC have taken prosecutions within the last 5 years but 
MDDC have not. Hence, experience in enforcement is lacking and therefore 
Surveyors lack confidence in this area. 

4.1.3 It is proposed to designate a lead officer for enforcement to coordinate all 
enforcement activity and develop a source of expertise. This will include the provision 
of training to ensure Level 6 validation and responsibility for disseminating learning 
and best practice to the rest of the team. 

4.1.4 The Enforcement Lead will also be responsible for developing communication with 
compliance officers in Planning and Environmental Health to help promote effective 
enforcement and coordination between services. 

4.1.5 This reorganisation of activities will provide a degree of separation between 
enforcement and our consultative service helping to maintain effective relationships 
with service users and helping to clearly define the role of officers. 

4.1.6 It has been common practice for Local Authorities to only prosecute offences if 
considered serious and detrimental to Health and Safety. Minor offences have often 
been dealt with by refusing the issue of a completion certificate. It is considered likely 
that this practice will no longer be considered acceptable. Extensive chasing of 
reluctant service users and potential prosecution in the courts will have a significant 
impact on resources if this is required. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 10



4.2   Resource requirements 

4.2.1 Due to the current dip in economic activity it is anticipated that this can be resourced 
within the current establishment in the short term. This will enable us to assess the 
benefits of a revised way of working and assess the resource implications as we 
move forward. 

4.2.2 This will be a significant change with regard to the emphasis of the duties assigned to 
the Enforcement Lead but we consider all aspects of the role to be adequately 
covered by the existing Senior Building Control Surveyor job description.  

4.2.3 It is envisaged that the Enforcement Lead will not be assigned a default area for 
Building Control Duties but will act as a floating officer covering for absence and 
supplementing resource where workloads are heaviest. This will enable 
concentration of time on enforcement when required without immediate impact on 
customer service within Building Control. 

4.2.4 A close watch will be maintained to evaluate the implications of the monitoring role of 
the BSR and the impact on required resources to ensure a satisfactory level of 
service and compliance. 

4.3   Review of job descriptions 

4.3.1 When full details of the Building Inspector Registration are available consultation with 
Human Resources is required with regard to the impact of changes on Job 
Descriptions required competencies and evaluation of posts. 

4.3.2 Job descriptions need to be revised to take into account classification of registration 
of officers and consideration given to the consequences of failure to maintain classes 
of registration. 

 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2020 (attached)
	7 Pooled budget and trading account as at 30 June 2020
	8 Building Control Business Update.
	9 Key Performance Indicators.
	10 Impact of Building Safety Bill

